UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT


EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS


TYLER DIVISION

ALBERTO N., ET AL.,


'


'
Plaintiffs,


'
'
vs.





'
CIVIL ACTION NO.
6:99CV459


'
DON A. GILBERT, ET AL.,


'
'
Defendants.


'

PLAINTIFFS= MOTION FOR CLASS CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO FED. R. CIV. P. 23(a) AND (b)(2)
Pursuant to Rule 23(a) and (b)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiffs, by and through the undersigned counsel, respectfully file this Motion for Class Certification, and state as follows: 

1.
Plaintiffs brought this civil action for declaratory and injunctive relief on behalf of themselves and the class of similarly situated Medicaid-eligible individuals under the age of twenty-one who have been, or will be, unlawfully denied medically necessary in-home services from Defendants (ATexas Medicaid@).  Plaintiffs filed this class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a) and (b)(2), alleging systemic violations by Defendants of Title XIX of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. ' 1396, et seq. (AMedicaid Act@), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (AADA@), 42 U.S.C. ' 12131, et seq., and the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

2.
By this motion, Named Plaintiffs seek certification of the following class: all current and future Medicaid beneficiaries under the age of twenty-one who have disabilities or chronic health conditions and who have been denied or will be denied medically necessary in-home medical services from Texas Medicaid.

3.
The Named Plaintiffs are seven children with disabilities and chronic health conditions who have been denied medically necessary in-home medical services by Defendants Texas Medicaid.  Plaintiffs, however, do not simply claim that Texas Medicaid erred in determining their specific entitlement to in-home medical services; rather, the Named Plaintiffs allege that Texas Medicaid=s decision-making process regarding access to the medically necessary services is arbitrary and capricious.  Thus, the Named Plaintiffs and the putative class members are all subjected to the same arbitrary decision-making process, and as such, class certification is warranted under Federal Rule 23.      

4.
This motion is meritorious and should be granted as Plaintiffs satisfy all four requirements of Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a) for class certification and those for Rule 23(b)(2).  Plaintiffs meet the first requirement of Rule 23(a)(1), that the class be so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.  The class at issue contains approximately 6,000 children or young adults who are eligible for services under Texas Medicaid=s Comprehensive Care Program, as well as future, presently unknown Medicaid recipients.  It is well established that a class with thousands of members satisfies the numerosity requirement.  Further, because the putative class members are dispersed throughout the state of Texas, joinder is geographically impracticable, if not impossible, even if their identities could be established.  Joinder is also obviously impracticable as to all unnamed, unknown future class members who will allegedly be harmed by Defendants= conduct.  The fact that Medicaid recipients are indigent and that these particular recipients are all under the age of 21 also makes joinder impracticable and supports the need for class certification.

4.
Plaintiffs likewise satisfy the second requirement of Rule 23(a)(2), that there must be questions of law or fact common to the class.  As stated above, Plaintiffs have alleged systemic and pervasive violations of federal law by Defendants, and the Court=s determination as to whether Texas Medicaid operates its programs arbitrarily and capriciously will affect all putative class members.  Discriminatory practices such as those alleged in this action generally meet the commonality (and typicality) requirement, as Plaintiffs contend that Defendants have, and continue to, violate federal law as to the class as a whole.  Because Plaintiffs and putative class members share common questions of law and fact, this case meets the requirement of commonality. 

5.
Plaintiffs also meet the third requirement of Rule 23(a)(3), that the class representatives= claims be typical of the claims of the class.  As stated above, each Named Plaintiff is a Medicaid beneficiary under the age of 21 with disabilities or chronic health conditions, and each has been arbitrarily denied medically necessary in-home medical services from Texas Medicaid.  In this way, each of the Named Plaintiffs and the class members deal with the same unlawful system and seek to have it brought into compliance with federal requirements.  To that end, the Named Plaintiffs have advanced legal and remedial theories similar to those that would be advanced by class members if they were pursuing parallel actions.  As such, the typicality requirement (which is not demanding) is met.   

6.
Finally, Plaintiffs satisfy the fourth requirement of Rule 23(a)(4), that the representative parties will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class.  As described above, Named Plaintiffs have the same claims and seek the same remedies for the class as a whole.  Named Plaintiffs are represented by Advocacy, Inc., the federally-funded organization authorized to protect and advocate for the legal rights of Texans with disabilities pursuant to the Developmentally Disabled Assistance and Bill of Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. ' 6012(a).  Counsel for Plaintiffs are experienced in litigating class actions, and are knowledgeable as to Medicaid, health, disability, and civil rights law.  Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the class, and this action will be prosecuted vigorously.

7.
Plaintiffs also satisfy the requirements of Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) for the certification of a class action.  Rule 23(b)(2) requires that Athe party opposing the class has acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief with respect to the class as a whole.@  Since Plaintiffs allege that Texas Medicaid=s policies and practices operate to deny the Named Plaintiffs and the putative class members the necessary medical services to which they are entitled, Rule 23(b) is an appropriate vehicle for such an attack against the systemic abuses practiced by Texas Medicaid.  It is well established that claims seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, as in this case, are appropriate for  Rule 23(b)(2) class certification.  As Plaintiffs meet the prerequisites of Rule 23(a) and declaratory and injunctive relief has been requested, this action should be allowed to proceed under subdivision (b)(2).    

8.
Defendants oppose this motion.

THEREFORE, for the foregoing reasons and those set forth in Plaintiffs= Brief in support of this motion, Plaintiffs respectfully request that their Motion For Class Certification be granted and that this action be certified as a class action.
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March 17, 2000
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ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served, via hand delivery,  upon the following counsel of record on the ___ day of March, 2000.

Mr. Edwin Horne

Assistant Attorney General

General Litigation Division

Office of the Attorney General

P.O. Box 12548

Austin, Texas 78711
 

______________________________

PETER HOFER



CERTIFICATE OF CONFERENCE
I hereby certify that I conferred with defense counsel, and on March 20, 2000, he informed me that Defendants oppose this motion.  

______________________________

MARYANN OVERATH
